NOMINATION OF HISTORIC BUILDING, STRUCTURE, SITE, OR OBJECT
PHILADELPHIA REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
PHILADELPHIA HiISTORICAL COMMISSION

SUBMIT ALL ATTACHED MATERIALS ON PAPER AND IN ELECTRONIC FORM (CD, EMAIL, FLASH DRIVE)
ELECTRONIC FILES MUST BE WORD OR WORD COMPATIBLE

1. ADDRESS OF HISTORIC RESOURCE (must comply with an Office of Property Assessment address)
Street address: No OPA-compliant address. Southwest of intersection between Winchester Ave and

Old Bustleton Ave, in Pennypack Park GPS coordinates: 40.076881, -75.043783
Postal code:19115 P

2. NAME OF HISTORIC RESOURCE
Historic Name: Roman Catholic Church of Maternity, Blessed Virgin Mary

Current/Common Name:_Maternity, BVM.

3. TYPE OF HISTORIC RESOURCE
X] Building [] Structure [ ] Site [] Object

4. PROPERTY INFORMATION
Condition: [] excellent []good X fair (] poor (] ruins
Occupancy: [X occupied [ ] vacant [] under construction (] unknown
Current use:____ Religious services

5. BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
Please attach a narrative description and site/plot plan of the resource’s boundaries.

6. DESCRIPTION
Please attach a narrative description and photographs of the resource’s physical appearance, site, setting,
and surroundings.

7. SIGNIFICANCE
Please attach a narrative Statement of Significance citing the Criteria for Designation the resource satisfies.

Period of Significance (from year to year): from _1870 to 1890

Date(s) of construction and/or alteration: 1870

Architect, engineer, and/or designer:__ “General Superintendent”

Builder, contractor, and/or artisan: Carpenter Matthew M. Rogers

Original owner:__Archdiocese of Philadelphia

Other significant persons:
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CRITERIA FOR DESIGNATION:

The historic resource satisfies the following criteria for designation (check all that apply):

] (a) Has significant character, interest or value as part of the development, heritage or cultural
characteristics of the City, Commonwealth or Nation or is associated with the life of a person
significant in the past; or,

or,
(c) Reflects the environment in an era characterized by a distinctive architectural style; or,

the City, Commonwealth or Nation; or,
(f) Contains elements of design, detail, materials or craftsmanship which represent a significant
innovation; or,

(9) Is part of or related to a square, park or other distinctive area which should be preserved
according to an historic, cultural or architectural motif; or,

familiar visual feature of the neighborhood, community or City; or,
(i) Has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in pre-history or history; or
(i) Exemplifies the cultural, political, economic, social or historical heritage of the community.

XO K K O OXO O

8. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES
Please attach a bibliography.

9. NOMINATOR

(b) Is associated with an event of importance to the history of the City, Commonwealth or Nation;

(d) Embodies distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style or engineering specimen; or,
(e) Is the work of a designer, architect, landscape architect or designer, or engineer whose work
has significantly influenced the historical, architectural, economic, social, or cultural development of

(h) Owing to its unique location or singular physical characteristic, represents an established and

Organization n/a Date
Name with Title_Celeste A. Morello, MS, MA Email__--
Street Address_ 1234 South Sheridan Street Telephone_215-334-6008

City, State, and Postal Code___Philadelphia, PA 19147-4820

Nominator [_] is X is not the property owner.

PHC Use ONLY
Date of Receipt:__5/16/2019

X Correct-Complete [] Incorrect-Incomplete Date:_ 8/5/2019

Date of Notice Issuance: 8/15/2019

Property Owner at Time of Notice:
Name: City of Philadelphia, Department of Parks and Recreation

Address:  One Parkway Building

1515 Arch St, 10" Floor

city;__Philadelphia State: PA  Postal Code:_ 19102

Date(s) Reviewed by the Committee on Historic Designation: _9/18/2019, rec. Criteria D & J

Date(s) Reviewed by the Historical Commission;_10/11/2019

Date of Final Action: 10/11/2019, des. CriteriaD & J

X Designated [ ] Rejected 12/7/18




CITY OF PHILADELPHIA

Parks & Recreation One Parkway
Kathryn Ott Lovell 1515 Arch Street, 10 Floor
Commissioner Philadelphia, PA 19102-1587

Phone: 215.683.3600

May 2, 2019

Celeste Morello

1234 S. Sheridan Street

Philadeiphia, PA 19147

RE: Maternity B.V.M. Church in Pennypack Park

Dear Ms. Morello,

Per a review by the Philadelphia Law Department, the City of Philadelphia is the owner
of the Maternity B.V.M. Church, located in Pennypack Park. The land and building were
acquired by the City under a July 16, 1915 Ordinance.

Sincerely,

AN

Aparna Palantino
Deputy Commissioner
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151 N 13 011 and Abstract of Title (below)
- 2/5/1870: John A. William to the Right Reverend James T. Wood, Trustee
- 8/21/1884: the Right Reverend James T. Wood, Trustee to Patrick John Ryan
- 7/26/1911: Patrick John Ryan (Archbishop 1884-1911) to E. F. Prendergast
(Archbishop 1911-1818)

BOUNDARY:

(As prepared by the staff of the Philadelphia Historical Comm.)

The Roman Catholic Church of the Maternity, Blessed Virgin Mary
and the ground upon which it is situated was conveyed to the
City of Philadelphia, per the "Ordinance" of July 16, 1915
which confirms the boundaries noted above within Pennypack Park.
A true and correct copy of said Ordinance was provided by the

City's Department of Parks and Recreation and is on the next page
for review.



BOUNDARIES of Maternity's plot, when consolidated into park.
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DESCRIPTION:

Maternity, Blessed Virgin Mary Roman Catholic Church,
(hereafter, '"Maternity'") is a solitary building located just
above Pennypack Creek in Pennypack Park. It is a City-owned
property exhibiting a "Gothic Chapel" design of the mid-1800s,
a simple two story stucco over stone construction, measuring
46' wide by 70' in depth.1 The church's walls' height is 24'
and 32' at the roof's pitch.Z The altar in this semi-active

church is at the west end of the building, with entrances at the

south- .
northwest (rear) and double doors at the east, the main portal. This

[ReR

well-maintained building is painted white with burgundy-colored

trim around the five Gothic arched windows on the northeg%d southwest
walls., There are glass blocks in the basement windows. A plain
metal cross stands at the roof's peak above the facade.

Access to this church set into the park landscape is from
Winchester Street where it turns into the former "0ld Bustleton
Pike/Avenue" that dead-ends at the church. The gravel and stone
drive-way to the church passes a small sign reading that "10:30
Sunday Mass'" is held there. The gravel drive-way encircles the
building, but at the front is below the grade of the building.
Five concrete steps from the street or drive-way lead to the level
of the building's base, then a longer flight of steps to the por-
tal. The flat facade has a large Gothic arch window centered and
at the second story level to illuminate the sanctuary from the sun
rising in the east. Tall double wood panelled doors .with a tym-
panum of wood panelling are vertically in alignment with the por-
tal below. The stained glass windows are narrow and with religi-
ous motifs. Two windows alongside the portal continue those from
the sides in alignment. An April, 2019 visit to this site found
scaffolding at the foot of the steps to the facade.

"The Catholic Standard," January 28, 1871.
Ibid. Also, Mahoney, D., Historical Sketches of the Catholic Chur-
ches...Phila.: 1895, p. 129.
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Figure 1: Maternity BVM church is oriented along intercardinal directions, with the main entrance to the southeast along
what was historically a continuation of Old Bustleton Avenue.

Figure 2: Looking east at the southeast and northeast elevations from the current driveway of the church, formerly an
extension of Old Bustleton Avenue.



Figure 4: Details of the front elevation windows and door.



Figure 6: The rear, northwest, elevation nd detail of the rear door.



Figure 7: The northeast side elevation.



STATEMENT of SIGNIFICANCE:

For whatever reason(s) the Archdiocese of Philadelphia al-
lowed Maternity, Blessed Virgin Mary Roman Catholic Church to be
released and granted to the City of Philadelphia is for the bene-
fit of visitors to the largest municipal park in the United States
and what one may find there. At this part of the former "Fair-
mount Park,” at Pennypack Creek is an example of a mid-19th cen-
tury "Gothic Chapel" that was typically found in smaller, more
rural communities during the nation's growth at that time. This
building holds great sentiment to long-time residents in Bustle-
ton whose families worshipped there, but for the non-religious,
the architecture of Maternity, and how fitting it is for this
location is very instructional. This church building adds to the
City's collection of historic buildings situated within the park
that range from the Letitia House of the late 17th century to the
array of residences along the Schulkill River; City Hall and the
Neoclassicals along the Benjamin Franklin Parkway--all offer a
different type of architectural style that reflected their res-
pective eras. And that is why Maternity church is historically-
significant.

Maternity also provides an example of how the workingclass
managed to fend for itself in remote areas of the city. There was
in 1870, a community far removed from the effects of the Civil War
and sophistication of urban life. Here, in Bustleton was a group
who constructed this church by itself and with what it collectively
could afford. It stood against the elegant Roman Catholic churches
in developed areas. Maternity was an example of the City's diver-
sity during the Gilded Age and industrialism. Architecturally,
the building was also on the opposite end of the variety of styles--

one more lavish and ornate than the others making architectural



history from Center City architects--with this "pioneer" style
seen at its simplest here among the Roman Catholics who could not

afford to hire skilled designers as their Protestant neighbors.

Maternity's "Gothic Chapel' design is remarkable, and so is
its location in Pennypack Park as a City-owned property acquired
about a century ago from the Archdiocese.

Criteria (d), (g) and (h) explain why Maternity merits his~-
torical designation which has already been tacitly acknowledged
by the City when it purchased the church.

Celeste A. Morello, MS, MA
May, 2019

' [Roben S. Hatvey)
MATERNITY OF THE BLESSED VIRGIN MARY PARISH'S origi-
nal stone chapel on Old Bustleton Avenue.

Source of image and captiom: "The Catholic Standard and Times,"
November 16, 1995. (CHRC, Phila.)
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Maternity, Blessed Virgin Mary Roman Catholic Church...

(d) Embodies distinguishing characteristics of an architectural
style--the '""Gothic Chapel."

The Gothic style had its origins in 12th century France.
Abbott Suger, a monk, recorded on what he had drawn to solve some
architectural problems in Romanesque designs, such as how to
achieve height. The cleric toiled until he found that the round
or Roman arch used in. openings, distributed weight more horizon-
tally, with the building itself bearing the weight. Suger bent
the round arch, which forced weight downward, allowing more height,
The religiosity of this bent or pointed arch was accompanied with
the concept of reaching the heavens, or having the ability to as-
cend higher. The Gothic arch thus held these attributes for the

architect in using the Gothic for religious buildings?

The Gothic style influenced early architects in the United
States as it primarily identified with Classical architecture,
then turned to the Gothic "especially for church building." The
first Gothic church in the United States was Godefroy's Chapel of
St. Mary's Seminary in Baltimore, dating from 1807. It is Roman
Catholic, but Protestant churches soon adapted the style and it
became more popular after Upjohn's Trinity Episcopal Church (1839-
1846) in New York City.4 In Philadelphia, William Strickland's
St. Stephen's Episcopal Church (1822) would be the lone Gothic
example until prominent architects such as John Notman and John
E. Carver applied the Gothic more in the 1840s here.

The Gothic churches were decorated to enhance the religious
experience. However, the costs for each church was borne by the
benefactors, i.e., the congregation. By the 1840s, two Gothic

church designs arose as templates for the varied economic classes.

3The translation of Suger's records are in Panofsky, Erwin(ed.),
,Abbot Suger: On the Abbey Church of St.-Denis...Princeton: 1946.

5BrOWn, M., American Art. NY: Abrams, 1979, p. 178.
Webster, R., Philadelphia Preserved. Temple U. Press, 1981, p.109.
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MATERNITY'S CONSTRUCTION:

The small group of Roman Catholics living and working
along the Pennypack Creek in the 1860s could be described as
"those communities whose funds are too limited to admit of any-
thing approaching to architectural display,'" wrote Philadelphia
architect Samuel Sloan in his 1869 volume of The Architectural
Reivew and American Builders' Journal? This book was arranged
for those who could not afford to hire an architect, but relied
upon a carpenter to design and then construct a building. Sloan
presented various types of buildings, along with suggestions for
materials and details or decorative motifs to add interest and
embellishment.’ This is the probable route taken in the erection
of Maternity church.

Earlier determined as a mission of St. Joachim's Roman Cath-
olic Church in Frankford, Maternity had not been planned as a pa-
rish with the rectory, convent and school attachments to support
any growth. Maternity was essentially only a "worship site,”
with priests from St. Joachim's or other parishes ministering.
With ground donated by John B. Willian, it seemed that Maternity
church was overseen by Reverend John McGovern, St. Joachim's
pastor by August of 1870. St. Joachim's location in Frankford
held a more established congregation since its founding in 1845.8
Accordingly, Father McGovern enlisted "Mr. Matthew M. Rogers"
as the "general superintendent of the work'™ to build the church.
Rogers was listed in the Philadelphia Business and City Directory
of 1870 as a '"carpenter'" at "Tacony and Church" streets which are

in Frankford, St. Joachim's parish.

Maternity's architecture was a contemporary design for chur-

?Sloan, S., Architectural Review...Phila.: Claxton, et al., p.73.
Refer to relevant pages in Appendix I, the "Bibliographical Refer-
ences.

Mahoney, D., Historical Sketches of the Catholic Churches...

9Phila.: 1895, p. 129,

"The Catholic Standard, January 28, 1871.
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A COUNTIRY CHURCH IN GONCRETE.

(Above) illustration from Sloan's Architectural Review.

ches in a rural setting and with smaller congregations. However,
the applications of the Gothic arch over windows, doors and other
openings, buttresses and elevating the structure on a high base

for added height were basic. From the early 1850s through the

end of the 19th century, "Gothic chapels" or Gothic-style "Coun-
try Churches" appeared throughout Philadelphia's less settled

areas such as the "Northeast" part of the former Philadelphia Coun-
ty. Many churches were designed by well-known, reputable archi-
tects such as John Notman, Richard Upjohn, Frank Wills, and Sloan.
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This "pattern book" gave directions
and designs for various kinds of
buildings, including churches.




i

Architects

Locations Site: All Saints Episcopal, Torresdale i
Collections 9601 Frankford Avenue
Published Sources Phjlade|phia, PA

RPMMERs 2> Built: 1854 to 1855

;.Ar'ch_,i__t_e’_c’:_t:_:-_fFr_ank Wills -

The Athenasum of Phiadelphia

One of the earliest "Gothic Chapel or "Country Church" types
(in the Gothic style) in Northeast Philadelphia is All Saints.,
It was designed by Frank Wills (1822-1856) who, in the words of
Phoebe Stanton (quoted by Roger Moss & Sandra Tatman on the pab
site), "was more competent as a Gothic revival architect in 1845
than John Notman.,.." It can be compared to the Sloan design
from 1851-52, though with more modifications that made a less
rigid form in the landscaped setting. After this church was
built, the neighboring Episcopalians in Bustleton hired Richard
Upjohn (of Trinity Church fame) from Nev York City to design

St. Luke's Protestan;;Episcopal on Welsh Road, closer to Maternity,
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Three Luke's

Episcopal's site to compare with

images from St.

Maternity (left) in design.
Upjohn's design of St. Luke's is
from 1860; Maternity's from 1870
by no architect (by training.)
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Church at 70th and Woodland. duthor’s photograph

Source: Constance Greiff

These "Gothie Chapel" designs
were built near the time of
Maternity's construction in
1870.

underdeveloped former county

They were in the still-

districts.

(left) St. John German Luthe-
ran Church in South Philadel-
phia, attrib. Sloan. (1873).
(PHC approved.)

(left) Siloam Methodist Church

in Southwest Philadelphia.
Attrib. John Notman. (1867)
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Maternity, Blessed Virgin Mary Roman Catholic Church...

(g) Is part of or related to a square, park or other distinctive
area which should be preserved according to an historic,
cultural or architectural motif.

The City of Philsdelphia maintains possession of this Ro-

man Catholic church and the property upon which it stood when

constructed in 1870. The Archdiocese of Philadelphia relinguished

possession of the building and ground in documents held by the

City. (Refer to document prepared by the City Solicitor's Office.)
Maternity's parish history recorded events in its origins

from the late 1860s when some local Roman Catholic workers for

Mr. John B. Willian, a business-owner along Pennypack Creek,

needed a worship site to practice their faith. Mr. Willian then

donated land to construct a Roman Catholic church which arose
quickly by the end of 1870. At some point, a rectory was built
next to the church, close to the Winchester Street side. (It has
long been gone.) The parish history for Maternity stresses that
it has been a "mission" churcﬁl%nd not a "parish church" with ac-
companying rectory, convent, and especially, parochial school for

the complete archdiocesan community.

The City of Philadelphia's acquisition of Maternity's church
building and ground seemed to have come in stages and by some or-
dinances. Agreements with the Archdiocese of Philadelphia to con-
tinue Maternity's weekly service and other religious events were
commenced, but some leases detail the limitations as well as the
respousibilities of the Archdiocese for the church they ceded to
the City. (See Appendix II.) For nearly 100 years or more, Mater-
nity has been part of Pennypack Park, carefully maintained and

remains a historic, cultural and architectural fixture of this area.

Maternity's parish histories are redundant as a "mission" for vari-
ous parishes in Philadelphia and Montgomery County. Refer to sour-
ces in Appendix I.
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As of 2019,
Philadelphia's Department of Parks
Park,
maintained.

originally within Fairmount

the Fairmount Park Commission is included 1in

and Recreation. Pennypack

Park, still is City-~owned and

The "Official" publication listing Matermity in 1975 as

under "FPC" (Fairmount Park Commission)

"jurisdiction" also

still holds true today with this Roman Catholic church leasing
the building and ground to the Archdiocese of Philadelphia.

FAIRMOUNT PARK

A HISTORY AND A GUIDEBOOK

\,

WORLD’S LARGEST LANDSCAPED \
MUNICIPAL PARK

By
ESTHER M. KLEIN

- : PR nYAEN '-':" LIRS
B TR R J.LVE 2
JAN 101975
THE ATHENAEM |
R OFFICIAL DIRECTORY
- OF THE
- FAIRMOUNT PARK COMMISSION
o4

140

works and push button water treatment facilities. It is open
at specified times for individual and group tours. ;

Fairmount Park

TORRESDALE STATE FISH HATCHERY : State Road .
The mainstay for providing fish for the ponds and Schuyl-

kill River has been the Torresdale Hatchery. The cleaned

up creeks with the elimination of pollution benefitted the fish

supply.

PENNYPACK BAPTIST CHURCH : Krewstown Road :

The present church, built 1705 for the Baptists settling in
the area, was the impetus for the origins of Princeton Um
versity. :

BAPTISIMAL POOL: Krewstown Road
Early seftlers were baptized at the rock in the midst of the
% cool, dark pool.

ROMAN CATHOLIC MATERNITY SITE: Washington,
Lane and Bustleton Avenue

This historic religious center is one of the many properties
under the FPC jurisdiction. Two at 8217 and 8920 Bustletor
Avenue, occupied by Park staff.

CRISPIN CEMETERY: Holmes Circle

Captain Thomas Holmes, first surveyor General of Pep
sylvania, who prepared a map including ‘Faire Mount’, Pe
nypack Creek and other important areas of the develop
Fairmount Park, was buried in this cemetery near Pennyp2
Creek. Other notables of the country’s early days were buri
in this hallowed burial site.

‘FRIENDS OF PENNYPACK’: 8100 Frankford Avenue

This quaint colonial frame house contrasts with the stea‘_dyz
traffic along the busy thoroughfare, Frankford Avenue, which
cuts through the Pennypack section. Memorabilia as well 3%
the office of the ‘Friends of Pennypack’ dominate the int
rior. A lovely garden encircles the residence.

URY HOUSE: Pine Road

The 17th century house of Meirs Fisher was formerly
Swedish Fort. The owner gained fame for his hospitality €
tended to leaders of the nation, Washington, Jefferso
Adams and others, who travelled there on horseback fro




-20-

Map (below) from George E. Thomas, "Architectural Patronage
and Social Stratification in Philadelphia
between 1840 and 1920," in Cutler, William
W., III, (Ed.) Divided Metropolis: Social
and Spatial Dimensions in Philadelphia,

1800 to 1975. Greenwood Press, 1980, p. 99.

Maternity, BVM

St. Dominic's

Map 4-3. The Distribution of Philadelphia’s Methodist and Roman Catholic Churches,
1840-1880. Methodist churches appear here as a dot, Catholic churches as an x.
Both new and relocated congregations are shown.
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Maternity, Blessed Virgin Mary Roman Catholic Church...

(h) Represents an established and familiar visual feature of the
Bustleton neighborhood--owing to its unique location and
singular physical characteristics.

The origins of Roman Catholic worship in this Bustleton
neighborhood in Northeast Philadelphia are evident in this small
Gothic design which resembles those from Protestant groups in
and near Bustleton. Maternity's "unigue location' in Pennypack
Park, however, isolated it, but caused curiosity among non-Catho-
lic residents and passers-by. This simple church's history may
respond to how its site within a municipal park was destined from
its status as a mere "'mission'" worship site instead of the stan-
dard parish complex of buildings‘that a Roman Catholic community

would be based and thrive.

MATERNITY'S FOUNDING:

Once part of the outlying Philadelphia County district or
township until the Consolidation in 1854, the Bustletom area in
which Maternity is located, had been a sparsely developed place
with a scattered number of residents. Some Irish Catholic wor-
kers along the Pennypack Creek had only been able to hear Mass
at St. Joachim's in Frankford (founded 1845), or St. Dominic's
(founded 1849) in Holmesburg, both miles away. In the 1860s,
priests from St. Joachim's travelled up to the Pennypack Creek
area where some businesses and residences were frequented by Cath-
olics, and Mass could be said at an unconsecrated spot. Smed-
ley's Atlas of 1862 detailed where clusters formed on both sides
of Pennypack Creek. (Refer to next page.) The absence of names
at the "boxed" area where Maternity was built, differs from the
stream of apparent property-owners along present-day Welsh Road
and to the morth of Maternity. The residents in this area most
likely were the (Protestant) Episcopalians who had financed the
St. Luke's Church that was designed by New York architect Richard
Upjohn in about 1860. (See images on page 14.) The socio-economic
classes in this section of Bustleton.were thus established by

Maternity's founding in 1870.
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Smedley's 1862 Atlas noted surnames, generally of English
or Welsh origins. William Penn's 17th century associates had
occupied this area towards the Delaware River, building "plan-
tation-like" homesteads, or' manors resembling those abroad.

The location of St. Luke's Episcopal, among the developed
area and on a main road, showed how by the 1860s, the planning

of this part of Bustleton had eveolved from larger tracts to
buildings erected closer to each other with closer access to

transportation.
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Maternity's remote location in Philadelphia by "1880" is
also demonstrated in the Thomas map of "The Distribution of...
Roman Catholic Churches.'" (Refer tao p. 20). In that post-Consoli-
dation/post-Civil War era, the distance of Maternity from where
the archbishop lived in Center City, and the majority of Catholic
churches was significant. Historian Dennis Clark, whose speci-
alized area is Irish American history in Philadelphia, wrote from
the Irish Catholic view of how those who had arrived in the city
during the famine years (1840s through 1850s) often chose to re-
locate to more rural areas rather than live in the ghettoes of
Moyamensing or Kensingto%l(today's Bella Vista and parts of Fish-
town.) The difference in lifestyle was remarkable not only from
an economic point, but in how a community could be sustained in
practicing the Roman Catholic faith.

Roman Catholics of Irish ancestry were the backbone of the
then-diocese in 1870, rising from the migrant class and forming
a bloc to advance the parochial school system in the parishes.
Moreover, the Irish famine arrivals had caused, according to
Gallman, the birth of several institutional systems including
Roman Catholic hospitals, orphanages, homes for the elderly and
widows, and a variety of '"social services" @hich Catholics at
Maternity could not avail themselves to. 1In effect, the small
group who wanted Matermity in Bustleton, were '"pioneers," left
to be independent, self-supporting to an extent, and too far away
from mainstream Philadelphia's Roman Catholic life to be part of
the whole. From the start, Maternity was intended to be a "mis-
sion," or adjunct of a larger parish, not its own, although for
a few years after its dedication, Maternity was left alone.

With insufficient members and funds, Maternity could not grow

into the standard parish complex of church, school, rectory and

1%CTark, Dennis, The Irish in Philadelphia. Phila.: Temple Univ.
1obress, 1973. p. 50. _ - ‘ _
Gallman, J. Matthew, Receiving Erin's Children. Chapel Hill:
University of North Carolina Press, 2000, pp. 141-2 (as intro-

ductions to broader discussions.)
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convent for the teaching nuns--which was the format established

by (Saint) Bishop John Neumann, CSsR in the 1850s. Maternity's
status within the Archdiocese was then, unique and open for its
future, or lack of a future, as an archdiocesan property.

Another Maternity, BVM Church was created, intended as a pa-
rish by the 1960s. 1In its parish history, the compilers placed
the 1870 Maternity as a "predecessor' church, though not a parish.
Below are some (copies) of old photographs of the 1870 church's
surroundings along Pennypack Creek, including Willian's old mill.

The Otd Cotton Mill and Pennypack Falls

Foot of Bustleton Hill facing location where
new church is situated

Mr. John Willian’s Calico and Print Mill on South-
eastern Bank of Pennypack Creek

(Source: 1970 parish history of
Maternity. Catholic Historical
Research Centor, Phils,)




Aerial Photographs of the Delaware Valley, 1965 - Aerial Photo A35 B40 Maternit y church's address DTmsm ed

North: _ A35 B41 between 1965 and 1970 when the church
faced 0ld Bustleton Avenue (1965), then
had the new Bustleton Avenue behind.{1970)
Old Bustleton dead-ended at the church's
southern-most boundary, near the Creek.

A new bridge with the new highway was
constructed, with the previous bridge
destroyed on 0ld Bustleton w<m5cm.

/

/

Photographs of the Delaware Valley, 1970 - Aerial Phbto A35 B40

Naorth:  A35 B41
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For over 100 years, Maternity church has been on busy

Bustleton Avenue, first, with traffic passing by the front of
the church to go over the bridge to the other side of Pennypack
Creek. The church was a frequent site then and remained in
view with the new Bustleton Avenue that ran behind the church
building by 1970. Despite that a parish with the name, "Mater-
nity, BVM" was established in the last quarter of the 20th cen-
tury, sentiment for the 19th century little church about one-
half mile away remains for the weekly Mass and special events

planned especially for that church and its landscaped setting.

Maternity, BVM church merits historical certification per

criteria (d), (g) and (h) for the aforementioned reasons.

Celeste A. Morello, MS, MA
May, 2019
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Descriptions. i3

Executed in stone, cither hammered
or rough rubble, with cut-stone trim-
mings, this louse would present a
pleasing appearance. In pressed brick,
with stone trimmings, though not so
consonant to surrounds of shrubbery ag
in stone, it would yet be a neat object
and tend much to the embellishment of
the outskirss of a city or village.

\HERE is a great want of snitable
. designs. caleulated to meet the
nst;es and necessities of those commu-
ties whose funds are too limited to
Amit of anything approacling to archi-
ectural display. - Our object, therefure,
1 presenting the two which 11111st1'1te
our remarks is o show the wa
cl[iils—t_oiﬁl_le_w__s_e

Churches of large dimension and as-
- Suming appearance call forth prof‘es-

to

‘DESTGNS FOR SMALL CHURCHES.

sional skill, because the expenditure will
be commensurate with the expansive .
ideas of the wealthy for whose benefit’
such edifices are constructed. But a
plainer class oferections, as much wanted,
should draw out the efforts of our breth-
ren, if only for the good they may do.
There are few avchitects who are not
subject to the often oceurring claims on
their donative services in behalf of poor
congregations, and, we say it with

K




T4 The Architectural Review and American Builders' Jowrnal.

pride, that we have yet to hear of the
first instance of those claims not being
promptly atiended to by even the busi-
est .of our brethren. Although it too
fregquently happens that theiv liverality
is severely and 1most thoughtlessly
taxed; for there generally is in every
community some spirvit too restless to
cease troubling even those whose time

TAu

0‘-
an

very limited. In aserial like the Aroui-
TECTURAL REVIEW there is an opportu-
nity presented to give, from time to
time, sketches “and instructions, Dby
which the wants of the bodies we allude
Lo may be met. The pastor in the back-
woods, and the minister on the prairie,
as well as the servant of God who
teaches the poor in our crewded cities,

Fis. 1.

and skill are freely given, not to them
personally, Lub to the sacred cause they
are snpposed to bave an interest inm.
But let that pass.

The illostrated works on Ecclesiasti-
eal Architecture, which come frow the
press, usnally treat of a class of edifices
altogether beyond the reach of the con-
gregations whose means are limited—
fiit

will each and all be benefitted by the
information given, and a truly good
work will thus be done.
churches here presented are now in
course of cons'pwiﬁy} ’

~ e one on the upper part of the page
is a Chapel of Ease to $le Calvary Pres-
byterian Charch, now buailding on Lecust
street, west of Fiftcenth street,

The two small #Y
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OUR THIRD VOLUME.

HE very flattering success which the ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW has hitherto
T met with, emboldens us to hope that its progress will even increase upon its
_ present rate; and to that end we now call upon all our readers o recommend it to
- their friends; and thus help realize our anticipations.

As an advertising medium the REVIEW is admirably caleulated to reach the very

" ¢lass for whose motice many manufacturers and business men are anxzious.

It is

now the recognized organ of the vast building community of this extensive country,
and its cirenlation is so wide as to reach the most distant parts.

"o secure the fullest patronage we are determined to make our pages more

interesting and instructive than ever.

PRACTICAL ART EDUCATION.

HE popularizing of economic art

principles should be & great incen-
tive to every citizen who values the
true object of national education, and
who desires to render more comfortable
the state of that great class of humanity
whose means fall far short of their de-
sires, and whose taste is ungratified, for
the lack of that kmowledge which often
serves the place of money, and gives to
the possessor the power of controlling
wants which could not otherwise be met.
The wealthier class of the community
has the power of calling to its aid the
talent and ability necessary to design
and create ; and the wants, or rather de-
sires, which vanity and ambition may

Vor II.-No. 1. ' )

urge, can e ministeredt to by that golden
chart whose spell is ommipotent in this
world.

It is therefore among the poorer class
that the principles of_economy are ex-
clusively required fto be disseminated;
and, their wants being many, the effort
to reduce them must be proportionately
great.

Science has done much to enlarge the
sphere of man’s authority; science is no
less able to encrease the comforts and
add to the happiness of the laboring
poor. It is not alone mecessary that
nations should be great, it is even more
desirable that the people should be con-
tent; for, national greatness with popu-

1 1)

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW
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GOTHIC CHAPEL.

HIS chapel is in the decorated gothic
style, and iy fifty feet long and
twenty feet wide, twenty-five feet to eaves
with an open-timbered roof twenty feet
high. The pastor’s study twelve feet by
twelve, and a tower nine feet by nine, are
in rear on either stde of chancel, which is
twenty-six feet by twelve feet wide in-
terior division.
The building material shounld be stone

ot brick, with stone dressings, the roof
covered with slate of varied pattern and
color, and ridge crowned with a crest-
ifng of appropriate design. The interior
should be finished with pine grained in
oals.

It will hardly be amiss to give a short
description of the style which I have
attempted to illustrate.

Of the Decorated Style, which flour
ished A. D. 1278—1377. Parker says:
it is distingnished by its Jarge windows
divided by mullions and tracery either
in flowing lines, or forming cireles,
trefoils, or olher geometrical figures,
and not running perpendicularly; its
ornaments are numerons and very deli-
cately carved, more strictly faithful to
nature and more essentially parts of the

structure, than to any other style. Inm
_small country churches, however, {and

r—

there are perhaps more plain churches of
this style than of any other) the windows
have the essential decoration oftracery.”
" Decorated Tracery is nsually divided
into three general classes: Geometrical,
Flowing, and Flamboyant ; the variety is
s0 great that sub-divisions may be made,
but they were all used simultaneously for
a considerable period.

Many windows of this style, especially
in the time of Edward 1., have the rear
arch ornamented with cusps, with a hol-
low space over the head of the windows
in the thickness of the wall, between the
rear arch and the outerarch. This feature
was not continued in the Perpendicular

style, where the arch has usually a wide
shallow molding only.

Windows with fowing iracery, ang
those with reticulated or netlile formg
are in general somewhat later than the
geometrical patterns; at least. they o
not seem to have Been introduced guite
so early ; but they are very frequently
contemporanecus, and both classes may
often be found side by side in the sarme
building, evidently erected at the sama
time.

No rule whatever is followed in the

| form of the arch over windows in this

style; some are very obtuse others very
acute, and the ogee arch isnot uncommon,
Square-headed windows are very common
in this style in many parts of the country,
Windows with a flat segmental arch are
also frequently used in this style. The
splendid rose-windows which are the
glory of so many French cathedrals,
helong generally to this style, although
they are also continued in the Flam-
boyant. In England they belong en-
tirely to the Decorated Style, and are
never continned in the Perpendicular,
The moldings of this style differ from
the early English chiefly in having the
rounds and hollows not so deeply cut,
and more generally filleted; the roll
molding, and quarterrtound are very
much used. A bold gquarter-round is
frequently used in arches without any
other, the plain charpher is used in all
styles, but in decorated work it is fre-
quently sunk so as to leave a small
square ecdge at each angle, thus varying
the light and shade, and giving a pre-
cision to theangles of the champher which
have a very good effect. The ornamental
sculpture in the hollow moldings are
numerous, but there are two which re-
quire more particular notice, they are
nearly as characteristic of the decorated
style as the zig-zag is of the Norman,
or the tooth ornament of the early
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“English. The first is the ball-lower,
* which is a globular flower half opened,
- gnd showing within a small ball.

The other ornament is the guater-foil
fower, this has a raised center, and four
petals cut in high relief; it is frequently
much varied, but may be distingnished
by its bheing cub distinctly into four
petals, and by its boldness, it is some-
times used abundantly, though no% quite
so profusely as the ball-flower. In some
instances the center is sunk instead of
being raised. . )

The battlement as an ornamental fea-
tore in_the interior of buildings is fre-
quently used in this style, although if is
more common in the perpendieular.

The pillars have no longer detached
shafts, and the capitals are ornamented
with foliage of a different character from
that which preceded it.

The doorways of this style arve fre-
quently large, and are very richly seulp-
tured ; but in small churches they are as
frequently plain, and have merely a drip-
stone over them.

The porches are sometimes shallov,

with windows or open arcades, at the
sides, and sometimes, though rarely, with
2 room over, there are also fine timber
porches of this style, distinguished by
the moldings and barge-boards.

Timber roofs of this period are com-
paratively scarce, although they are more
common. than is usually supposed.

The buttresses in this style have great
variety of forms and degrees of rich-
ness, sometimes they are quite plain, or
merely bave the angles champhered offy
and terminated by a slope, either under
the cornice, or passing through it. In
other instances the buttress terminates
in a pediment or gablet, either with or
without erockets and a finial, aceording to
the richness of the building. Over each
buttress there is frequently a gurgoyle,
or ornamental water-spout, they usually
have pediments, and are frequently en-
riched on the face with niches and can-
opies, and often terminate in pinnacles,

and others have a very bold projection, .

Chapel. 89

thig group of pinnacles are among the
most ornamental feature of the style.
The buttresses of this style are almost
invariably divided into stages with a
setioff between each, and sometimes
Tiave a succession of niches with crock-
etted canopies over them.

The general appearance of decorated
puildings is at once simple and magnifi-
cent, simple from the small number of

of windows and the easy flow of the lines
of tracery. In theinterior of large build-
ings we find great breath, and an enlarge”
- ment of the clere-story windows, with a
corresponding diminution of the triforium
shich is now rather a part of the clere-
story opening than a distinct member of
the division. Ornamentis nowherespared
yeb there is a simplicity which is pecu-
liarly pleasing. _
AreERT NOERR.

RrsronarroN.—In view of the devas-
tations of war now about to be com-
mitted in Burope, there is satisfaction
in the following facts:

© The walls of Sevastopol have now
been completely restored, and upwards
of 300 houses have been built in place
of those which had been ruined by the
bombardment. A new church, in the
form of a pyramid,built entirely of mar-
ble, has been erected in the churchyard
of the town, the cost of its construction
amounting to $140,000, having been pro-
vided by the Russian royal family. The
chief contributor was Princess Wassitt-
chykoff, who gave up for that purpose
the whole of her year’s pension, amount-
ing to 5,000 roubles or $10,000. On the
principal monument in the churchyard,
which is dedicated to Prince Michael
Gortchakoff, is -the following inscrip-
tion: ‘Here lie among warriors the
mortal remains of the man who pre-
vented the enemies of our country from
penetrating to this spot’ The tomb-
stones of the men are all alike in shape
an size, and each of them bears this in-

soription: ¢ Grave of our brother.’ ?

its parts, and magnificent from the size -

i
E
1
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. Mawavoxe.—The Angel® Sodality of |
S.t-J?hn the Baplist Uhlgll‘cl: [:;fvﬂll::a:f j
©is 0'Cannor, Pastor) held its anaual eele- |
bration on the 21 iost. Bev. Jobn Wi
Sha__nahln of St. Ohatles’ Church preached
an Instructive sermon on the Holy Aogels
and our Guerdian Angels, and especially
c:l:h.urtcd the children attached tolhe Se-
dality to bear in mind that thege Guardian
Angels always sccompanied thew, and
that the_):' should never do nnything’ that |
ﬁunld dlspllesc tavir heseenly guides. |
Many beautifal and appropriste hymus
wore well sung by the children.  Benedic-
tion of tho Most Blessed Sacrament was
given by Father Shanaban, assisted: by
Revs, Francis 0"Connor and Luke McCabe.
Bustzeton,—Tho cormer slon
new Church of the o M-‘ktefﬂiﬁi’e :Ir :ll::
Blessed Virgin' at Bustleton, to which
we referred o our last issue, was jaid on
ln_st Sonday, October 2d. by Rt Rev
Bishop Waoad, nssisied by Bi. Reg. S F:
Shanahan, Bishop of Barrisburg, Very
Rt_:v. P, A. Stanton, O §:A., Rev, Thomas
Kieran and Ruv. M. Filan, Deacons of
Honer, and Rev. A, J. McConomy, Mas-
ter of Ceremonies, Tha foltowing clergy-
men were also present : Rev. John MeGor-
o, Pastor of the Church, Rev. H. Depp-
wtoa, Rev. Thos. Tener, Rey. Thos. V.
Power, and Rev. J. B, Kelley.  After the|
ceremony of loying the corner-stoae wasg
concluded, the Itt. Rev, Bishop addressed
the large assemblage present, and gaid that
Le was surprised on coming to Bustleten
to Iny the corner-stone to find the chwich
alresdy hall built op, instead of Anding
cmpiy foundaiions as is usnally the case
on such _occasions. He then explained the
ceremnonies just concluded, and said that
the corner-stone was ouk Jaid in the name
of any Pastar, Bishop, or Pope, but inj
the_nll saving mawme of pur Lord Jesus
Chl“l.&t- He afterwardy alluded to the in-
delatigable exertions of the Pastor, and
n:isa t? the penerosity of Ar. John Wil-
linm, in hestoming the grownd upon which
the new church is to be built; and cane
c.‘ludud by exhorting them sl to contribute
_ liberally towards the completion of the
good work already 3o far advanced ; ofter
wh:ch'hn impatted the usua) benediction.
A tin box, containing the usual Latin
inseription, copias of the CaTnorie Sraxo-
AR, Holmesburg Gasate, Sunday and
d_:ul_y papers, and also the different gold,
silver, and nickel coins, was deposited in
the corner-stone, Quite a large pumber
of people from Philadlphia, Frankford, |
Brigesburg and Tocony assisted at the
c.eremonics. ‘Ehe following namied sogice
ties, under the direetion of Mr. Willia
O‘!}uzi!y. turned aut in Jarge nuinbers, and"
made = very counsiderable display: 8
Jol_nhim’s B.V. Sodelity, St. Viocent's:
Sm:::l_y of ‘Tatouy, beaded by a brass band,
St._;“mccur.‘s and 8t Joachim’s Beneficial
Sacieties of Frankford, and the Conflerence
of St.Vinceot de Pael. A baudspme col-
lection was realized.
Just at the begioning of the ceremonics
4 seaffold, gome ten feet from the ground
oo which a large pumbcerof persons b §
:itn_liuncd themselved, pave way, injuridg
fiva or six perseas more or less, none, how-
ever, seriously.
After the termination of the exercises
the Rt. Ruv, Bishops and Clergy repaired
to _the residence of Mr. Willian. where

.

rce: Scharf &
estcott!
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and debilitated by disease, the tireless prelat

about completing the
crowning act of his bus
dral on Eighteenth Street, though in use for
gervice for many years, an
geemingly finished, ¥
great expenditure to m
and had intended it shoul
to be built, handsome pew
POTAEY ODES,
rated. Besides,
remaining due on the building had to
set about accomplishing
tagk completed, and the noble &
consecrated to_ God forever.
finish had the work progresse
upon him in the midst of
midnight on Wednesday,
his last.
the 26th of April previous.
the itlustrions archbishop t
on Tuesday, the 26th,
ever celebrated in this city.

presence of the mayor, presi
of the courts, and prominent citizens,

creed, gave evidence of
Arehbishop Woo
munity.

Bustleton. The corner-3

by Bishop Wood. The ground was presented by John | Rev. Eden MeGinais,

B. Williams. Tn 1861, Bev. John D
Rev. E. J. Martin w

by Rev. John

istor :
y of Phila, germon delivered by Very Rev. P. E. Moriarty, 0.5.
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o set | Very Rev. F. X. Gartland,

work which would remain the | ferty and Rev. D. McDev!

y and useful life. The cathe- | Manahan, of New York.
divine | first pastor. In Novembe

d to the casual observer dedicated by Very Rev. F.

and | Bishop Hughes, of New ¥
see it | McLaughlin was appointt
such until his death, in 1
new organ was used for

et required much labor
ake it all be wished to
dbe. The grand altar was
s take the place of the tem-
and the whole vast interior be fitly deco- | tifical mass was celebrate

a debt of twenty-five thousand dollars Savannah. On Jaly 29,
be paid. He | new church was laid adjoi

The present rector is B
tructure then solemnly succeeded Father MeLaug
Nigh halfway to the §t. Stephen's Church
d when death camd | 1848, the corner-stone wa
his labors, Shortly before who also preached the se
June 20, 1883, he breathed | 1844, it was dedicated 1
He had completed his seventieth year on president of the Theolog

The solemn obsequies of Rev. E. T. Sourin. In 1
ook place in the cathedral | terward Bishop of Pittshr

They were the most impressive | 21, 1848, the remains o
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in great numbers from

Distinguished ecclesiastics 1 .
every part of the country were in attendance. The graveyard, Bishop Ken
dents of Councils, judges present ab reinterment. |

irrespective of | in the belief that the re
ch | who died in 1750, Sub)
that he was a physician
house mass was celebral
at | tion that he wasa pries
Berrill, the pastor, di

the high esteem in whi
d was held by the entire com-

e Blessed Virgin Mary is

Maternity of th
tone was leid Oct. 2, 1870,

ned for divine service
MecGovern, pastor of St. Joachim’s
Church at Frankford. Tt is forty-six by sevent feeb
ond cost five thousand five hundred dollars. Its pas-
tors have been Revs, J. F. Kelly (died May 14, 1871),
John Loughran, J. Ward, H. Garvey, J. O’'Byrne,
M. J. Armstrong, James A. Brehony, M. P. O’Brien,
D. 8. Bowes, B. J. Conway, and Rev. A. P. Haviland,
the present rector.
§t. Alphonsus (German)
gouthwest cotner of Fourth
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John Kelly. The pr

A. McLaughlin. He!l
east corner Broad ani
erect a_new ghurch,
The Chureh of th
Tenth and Dickinson
laid April 15, 1860, 3
vice Christmas day, X
cated at the | pastor until his deat
and Reed Streets. The M. A. Filan was apy
19, 1858, by Bishop Nen- | present in charge.
mann. Father Regis was the first pastor. On March | dedicated in 1863.

4, 1860, the church was dedicated by Bishop Wood; In 1881 the prope
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Having set the old chapel aside
1 to its length and height, and
the building thus enlarged. This
. 2gth of which year the eniarged
ducted by Sisters of St. Joseph,
ubilee of his ordination, when he
om his flock.
n away from them, In June, 1881,
Annunciation, and was succeeded
of the Annunciation parish since
ajley enlarged and otherwise im-
it residence, and in the autumn of
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In November of this year Father
her Dailey again succeeded him as
hird pastor was Rev, James T.
arge of the church at Bustleton.
¥ing came the present rector, Rev.
it St. Ann’s. e has stili further
n its appointments, but in its sur-
perty to the south which he turned
1, greatly enhances the appearance
indance of light and air from the

MATERNITY B. V. A,

MATERNITY B. V. M., BUSTLETON,

1870.

USTLETON was originally a mission attended from St. Joachim's,
B Frankford, and Mass was said here occasionally early in the sixties, for
a time, indeed, regularly once a month. This became a weekly priv-
ilege in 186g. Father McGovern, pastor of St. Joachim’s, on August 22d of !
that year, made the mission Mass regular in a large rcom kindly given for the
purpose by John B, Williams, Esq., to whom Catholics are also indebted for
the lot on which the church was erected in the following year. The corner-
stone was laid on October 2, 1870, by Bishop Wood, and the work was pushed
so rapidly to completion that the building was opened for Divine service on
December 11th, Father McGovern officiating.

The church is a plain stone structure, 46 feet wide by 7o feet long,
with a single large fropt door, above which is a double window giving
light to the gallery, and having on either side two neat small windows. There
are also five windows on each side, two of which give light to the sacristies,
The roof is of slate and over the front is a plain cross, The charch has also
a very convenient basement, lighted by four windows.

Rev. Thomas J. Kelly was the first resident pastor, and was installed on
January 22, 1871, His pastorate was brief, as he died of consumption on
May 16th of the same year. After his death the church was again for a time
served from Frankford. In 1871 Rev, John H. Loughran became pastor, but
was followed a year later by Rev. Hugh Garvey, whe stayed two years. Then
Rev. James A, Brebony was in charge until 1876; Rev. M. P. O’Brien from
this year until 1879, and Rev, D. S, Bowgs until 1881, when the church
again became a dependency of Frankford. But it once more became a sepa-
rate parish in the following year, with Rev. Asthur P. Haviland as pastor,
who remained until his death in 2886, The last resident pastor was Rev.
James ¥, Maginn, from 18386 until he was transferred to the Immaculate Con-
ception Church in\i888, when Bustleton once more became a dependency of
Frankford, from which it was separated three years ago and made & mission
attended from Cheltenham, in Montgomery County ; so that il is once more
served by its second resident pastor, Rev. John H. Loughran,
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Bishop Wood. Father Filan, who had resided in a rented house,
built a rectory on Front Street adjoining the church. The old chapel
was enlarged in length and height, and converted into a school, at

" the southern end of which a convent was provided. On 29 August,
1880, these improvements were completed, and 'in the same year

Father Filan celebrated the silver jubilee of his ordination. In
June of the following year he was transferred to the rectorship of
the Annunciation, and was succeeded by the Rev. P. J. Dailey, who
had been assistant at the Annunciation.

In the early ’sixties Bustleton was inhabited by a

Mateenity ) o .
B. V. M., small population, and a mission was established there
SBustleton, by the priests of St. Joachim’s, Frankford. An
1870 industrial revival increased the population, and

Bishop Wood arranged to form a separate parish, a site having
been donated by J. B. Williams, Esq. Work was begun, and on
2 October, 1870, Bishop Wood blessed the comex-stone, and on
11 December of the same year the building was completed, a stone
structure, 46 feet by 70 feet. It was dedicated under the title of
the Matemity of the B. V. M., by the Rev. John McGovern. On
22 January, 1871, the Rev. John B. Kelly, who had beén an as-
sistant at Frankford, was appointed first resident pastor, but on 16
May he succumbed to tuberculosis of the lungs. After his death,
the Rev. John H. Loughran was appointed pastor, the priests of
Frankford in the meantime having attended Bustleton as a mis-
sion. A year later the Rev. Hugh Garvey was appointed pas-
tor, and after two years the Rev. James A. Brehony was put in
charge, and continued until 1876, when the Rev. M. P. O’Brien
became pastor, to be succeeded in 1879 by the Rev. D. S. Bowes.
The industrial activity had declined; the {actories were abandoned;
and in 1881, the church at Bustleton was agamn made a mission of
Frankford, until the Rev. Arthur P. Haviland was appointed pastor

in 1882.
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charge of the Sisters of Notre Dame, and the Sisters of the Im-
maculate Heart of Mary, the former coming from their mother-
house in Rittenhouse Square, while the latter reside in the convent
on the east side of Seventeenth Street, Father Gillespie also erected
the magnificent College, with its splendid auditorium, and by his
ability has succeeded in paying off most of the enormous debt on
the church. During the latter part of 1907, Father Gillespie was
transferred from the Gesu, and for a few months the Rev, Dennis
O’Sullivan was in charge. At Father O’Sullivan’s death in 1908,
Father Gillespie returped. to the rectorship of the Gesu, where he
remained until July, 1909, when the present rector, the Rev, Charles
W. Lyons, S. J., was appointed.

Tmmacuiate  After having been recior of this parish for seven
Conception years, the Rev. Patrick J. Dailey was appointed to
Gbureh the pastorate of the Annunciation, and was suc.

ceeded at the Immaculate Conception by the Rev.
James F. Maginn, Father Maginn gave place in three years to
the Rev. James F. Shields, who had been assistant at St. Anne’s,
At Father Shieldss death, 21 November, 1897, the present rector,
the Rev. Michael F. Rafferty, who had been pastor at Eddington,
was appointed to the Immaculate Conception. Father Rafferty has

made material improvements to the rectory, and frescoed and reno-
vated the church.

Mateenitp In 1888, when the Rev. James F. Maginn was
B. U, M., transferred to the Immaculate Conception, Bustle-
Bustleton ton once more became a mission, attended from

: Frankford. In 1892 it was made a mission from
Cheltenham, In the year 1900 Bustleton for a few months was
attended from St. Dominic’s, Holmesburg. On 29 September,
1900, the Rev. John J. Rooney, who had been assistant at St.
Veronica's, was appointed pastor of Bustleton, Father Rooney
at once proceeded to erect the needed pastoral residence. Hay-
ing purchased a lot north of the church, work was begun on a
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ACentury of Service to God and Man

The First 26 Years

The origin of the name “Bustleton,” given to our
settlement, is rather vague. Some people are of the
opinion that it derived its name from an old English
town by the name of Busseltown. The Ledger Almanac
published in 1881 tells us that on February 18, 1768,
there was advertised for sale a noted tavern known by
the name of “Busseltown,” later the property of Robert
Greenway, Lower Dublin, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania,

During the Revolutionary War, according to historian
Dr. Samuel F. Hotchkin, seventy-five British soldiers
pursued fifteen Revolutionists through the country
village of Bustleton. The house still standing at 9403
Bustleton Avenue known as the “Bee Hive™ dates back
to the Revolutionary War. The Bustleton Hotel, which
stood next to this home on the ground that now houses
Frankford Trust Company, was headquarters for part of
General Washington’s Army. It is not known when the
hotel was built, but it seems certain the town grew
“around” this hotel. The hotel was torn down in 1931.

The original settlement was a rural farm area, but
even then was a busy thoroughfare. Welsh Road derived
its name from a group of farmers from the Buckingham
Mountains (Doylestown area) who used this road to
transport their crops to the granaries in Philadeiphia.
The farmers found rest and refreshment on their long
journey at the “La Grange Tavern™ which was founded
by a certain John McGinn. In the same tavern an altar
was erected in a room on the second floor and about
once a month a priest from St. Michael’s Church came to
celebrate Mass. This property was later the residence of
Mr. and Mrs. Eugene Repetti.

Although the area was primarily farm country, there
was a considerable amount of industry in this area. A
number of mills and factories were located on the banks
of Pennypack Creek. The creek and nearby falls
provided power for this industry. With the coming of
steam, water power was driven in the background. Mill
owners soon abandoned this area and located their
plants closer to suppliers and consumers of their
products.

Mr. John B, Willian, a manufacturer from Holmes-
burg, purchased an abandoned print mill on the south
bank of Pennypack Creek. He brought five or six
Catholic men from Holmesburg to operate his plant. Mr,

L2772 1, 00m (@)

Willian built some ten modest homes on either side of
the creek and rented these homes to his employees for
three dollars a month. Many of his workers were Irish
immigrants who left their native country during the
potato famine of 1844-45.

In 1868, Mr..John Gallagher was granted permission
by his employer, Mr. Willian, to use the engraving room
of his calico printing mill for weekly Mass. The mill was
located on Pennypack Creek on the opposite bank of
our old church buil’@ing. Mr. Willian, who was not a
Catholic, gave furthér display of his munificence by
giving his Catholic neighbors a parcel of ground opposite
the mill for the erection of the church.

The Catholic Standard and Times on October 8,
1870, gave this account:

“The cornerstone of the new Church of Maternity

of the Blessed Virgin 4t Bustleton was laid on last

Sunday, October 2nd, by Right Reverend Bishop

Wood assisted by Right Reverend J. F. Shanahan,

Bishop of Harrishurg. The Rt. Rev. Bishop

addressed the large assemblage present and said he
was surprised on coming to Bustleton to lay the
cornerstone to find the church half~way up,
instead of finding empty foundations as is usually
the case on such occasions. He then explained the
ceremonies just completed and said that the
cornerstorie was not laid in the name of any
pastor, bishop or pope, but in the name of the
all-saving name of QOur Lord Jesus Christ. He
afterwards alluded to the indefatigable exertions
of the pastor and also to the generosity of Mr.

John Willian in bestowing the ground upon which

the new church is to be built.”

At Mr. Willian’s suggestion his employees were
continually crossing Bustleton Pike to help the parish-
ioners build the church. The hard work and dedication
of the workers and parishioners enabled the church to
open for services on, December 11, 1870, at a total cost
of only $55,000. 5;5??’0 ] (S’#ZV)

The first permanent” pastor was Reverend Thomas J.
Kelly who, despite failing health, fulfitled his assignment
to found and build a church in Bustieton. When Father
Kelly found that his health was failing, he left Bustleton
and the administrative duties of the parish were attended
by Reverend John H. Loughran of Presentation B.V.M.,
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necessity of leading a good life in order to save their
souls. His intention is to fix up the basement of the
church for school purposes .. .”

Again failing health denied a fulfiliment of a vision.
Father Haviland died in St. Joseph's Hospital on May 22,
1888.

On August 7, 1886, Reverend James F. Magin,
formerly a curate at St. Joseph’s, Downingtown, was
appointed pastor of our parish. From what information
is available, Father Magin left Bustleton in April, 1888,
and Maternity B.V.M. was without a resident pastor for
the next twelve years. Again the parish was assigned as a
mission to Presentation B.V.M., Cheltenham.

The Second 25 Years — 1885 to 1920

The first five years of this period, 1895 to 1900,

found our parish still considered as a Mission to

Presentation Parish of Cheltenham. There had been no
resident pastor since April, 1888.

On September 29, 1900, Reverend John J. Rooney,
curate at St. Veronicas, was appointed Pastor of
Maternity B.V.M. Church. Father Rooney boarded
with William and Kate Gallagher, in their home near the
church, since there was no rectory. The boundaries
assigned him were Dark Run Lane on the south; Ashton
Road on the east; Street Road including Trevose, Bucks

Interior view of original Maternity B.V.M. Church and exterior of Church and Rectory

County on the north and on the west, Dungan Road to
Pennypack Creek to Montgomery County including
Bethayres and Bryn Athyn.

Father Rooney began his administration on Sunday,
October 7th, and announced there would be two Masses
every Sunday at 8 and 10:30 o’clock. This same Mass
schedule at the old church prevailed until our new
church was completed in January, 1966. The 10:30 Mass
is still offered in. the original church. Many old
parishioners prefer to worship in this church. In a short
time, Father Rooney brought a true parish program to
the Catholics of this area. Confessions were heard every
Saturday and Eves of Feast Days. Catechism classes were
conducted in McMahon’s Hall, Bethayres, and also in the
Old Police Station in Somerton.

In the Fall of 1900, Father Rooney purchased a lot
adjoining the church property from the estate of George
Fales Baker and the following April work was begun on
the first rectory. The rectory was completed in
February, 1902.

In 1904, he began a renovation of the interior of the
church. New stained windows donated by friends of the
parish were installed and new oak pews made by boys of
St. Francis Industrial School were put in position.

During the years 1906-1907, the City of Philadelphia
took title to eight hundred and seventy acres of land in
the Byberry Section of Philadelphia. The site was
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the Pennypack Creek, in the. ﬂbmzw,m&r Ward, as a-

Park and open public place for the health and enjoy-
ment of the people; and divecting the Commissioners of

Fairmount Park: to. mmmﬁmm me n;mﬁo& EEM mainte-

nance om 26 same,

Seerion 1.. The Select and QaEa_S@ Qﬁﬁn&m En the

City of mu??um@m:a do ordatn, That by virtue and in por-

suance of the suthority vested in them they do select and

appropriate for park purposes and for the health and en-

joyment of the people forever a certain tract of ground,

being part of property authorized to be E%mm upon the -

Q,Q plan for such purposes by oﬁ,&pﬁn@ appraved March
20, 1905, and confirmed by the Board of: Surveyors

March Hu“ 1800, lying along both sides of the Pennypack.

Creek, in the Thirty-fifth ‘Ward, bounded ‘generally by
certain strects now upon the City w::uv or dwounnﬁmmh and
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plan of Pennypack Park, which point s aleo in a line

wmwwmm&n&mu. with the omﬁwm.mum. % the. Zﬁq uﬁgaw mwow

@o:z, H?E.%m as, w%ry E&. mﬁeaEm Qmﬁm %gm a.
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. and thence along the same §. 89% 547 um: dm to th
: “,Ewom of MEEHEE ocimEEm wzn aeres, Eoua or less

~ the. existing franchises of the ‘Connecting: Railway Com
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east Hne of Solly ﬁ%mﬁm. %@Em wlong the sume N, 58°
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1,009.667 feet; thenee N.11° 167 09" E. 1 ,843.297 feot;
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216 John Haviland. Plan, Eastern Penitentiary, Philadelphia.
182]-37. The Historical Society of Pennsylvania,
Philadelphia

The first and prototype of the full-fledged neo-Gothic

churches was New York’s third Trinity Church (1839—
46, plate 217), by Richard Upjohn (1802-1878). It is also
the first to look like a medieval building. Related to the

Pugin ideal, it was conceived outside and inside as a Per-
pendicular English parish church. Upjohn was an honest
and competent architect, underrated today because of the
very conservatism and fidelity to Gothic Revival prin-
ciples which originally made his reputation. As a dedi-
cated churchman, he subscribed to the Anglican reform

program and its implementation in Episcopal circles in
the United States. He even refused to build in the Gothic
style for nonconformist sects, Trinity, more than most of
his output, reveals a visual reticence in its purely sym-
metrical plan and axial tower, a scholastic regularity in

1NgS,

1volved. Since La-
trobe’s alternate design for the Baltimore Cathedral was
not accepted, the first Gothic Revival church in America
was Godefroy’s Chapel of St. Mary's Seminary (1807,
plate 214), in Baltimore. Then in rapid succession came
Gothic churches by Bulfinch, Mangin, Greene, and
Town. They were, from the evidence available, Gothic
only in decorative detail and essentially still Georgian
in conception. .

The Gothic also found its way into é’;
Haviland’s epochal Eastern Penitentiary (1821-37,
plates 215, 216) was “‘castellated” Gothic in detail, but
in its rationality of plan and spareness of form derived
from Monumental Classical thinking. The selection of a
brutal, dungeon-like design to house a penal institution
reveals a symbolic intention at variance with the en-
lightened conception of the plan.

For America architectural books, rather than actual
Gothic Revival buildings, eventually had a telling effect,
The publications of Augustus W. N. Pugin were crucial

in the transformation of the neo-Gothic from a pictur-
esque minor mede into a programmatic style of Christian
architecture. Pugin argued that only a Gothic architec-
ture could lead people into Christian ways and beliefs
and inspire them to moral behavior. The neo-Gothic was
thus provided with a rationale as principled as that of

the Neoclassic, and the Romantic taste for the pictur-

and most

the repetition of elements, and a bareness, almost timid-
ity, in ornamental detail. The interior, though struc-
turaliy false, is aesthetically coherent. On the whole, it is
an informed version of the Perpendicular.

Born in England, Upjohn worked as a cabinetmaker
before coming to the United States in 1829. In 1833 he
undertook his first architectural commission (now the
Symphony House, Bangor, Me.), reminiscent of Bulfinch
though indicating an awareness of the neo-Greek.
Upjohn also designed Oaklands (1835-36) for R. H.
Gardiner, Gardiner, Me., in the Gothic style but less a
Tudor manor than a Georgian building. These early
experiences presaged Upjohn’s later eclecticism. Though
hg became the most famous designer of Gothic Revival
churches, his oeuvre includes examples of the Italian Villa,
Romanesque, Early Christian, and Renaissance styles.

Upjohn’s larger Gothic churches were as imposing and
authentic as any of the time, though on the whole not
very ingratiating. He is often seen to better advantage in
his small rural churches. As a missionary activity, he

esque joined with Christian piety to establish the Gothic

in public favor,

178 THE JACKSONIAN ERA

designed without fee one church a year for a poor parish,
and the demand for his services became so great that he
published a series of low-cost designs and instructions in
Upjohns’ Rural Architecture (1852), which inspired many

<smalt Gothic Revival churches. Perhaps the most inter-
esting of these were the board-and-batten churches, of
which his Trinity Church (1854, plate 218), Warsaw,
N.Y,, is typical. Board-and-batten construction was an
indigenous form of carpentry sheathing in which boards
were laid vertically and the joints covered by thin slats, or
battens. Aside from being a simple and cheap method of
building, the stripping had the aesthetic effect of en-
livening the surface, emphasizing the vertical so dear to
Gothic Revival taste.

Minard Jafever turned from the Neoclassic and

designed a series of churches in the Gothic Revival style.

Of all his ecclesiastical work in Manhattan, Brooklyn,
and upstate New York only a handful remains. Among
those in the Gothic manner, all in Brooklyn, is the Church
of the Saviour, now the First Unitarian Church (1842-
44, plate 219), on Pierrepont Street, in Collegiate Gothic.
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